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The Brick Hotel, now the Georgetown office of the Wilmington Trust 
Company, is situated at the southwest corner of West Market Street and 
The Circle;in the Sussex County Seat. It is a seven-bay, double-pile, 
two-story-and-attic structure with a rear one-story original (but much 
altered; kitchen wing and a larger one-story modern wing dating from 
the 1930 f s which is now used as law offices.

The walls of the hotel are three courses of red brick laid in 
Flemish bond. The walls rise to double end chimneys contained in the 
brick end walls and joined by curtain walls at the ridge of the roof. 
Originally a third set of double chimneys were located at the center 
of the roof, but these were removed in the early 20th century. (See 
old photos for record of exterior alterations;.

The roof is now slate-tiled. Earlier in this century it was roofed 
with seamed tin, and still earlier in wooden shingles. A modern flat 
verandah roof extends outward from the front of the roof at the eaves. 
A modern Greek Revival reproduction, the porch replaces two earlier 
porches. From about 1920 to about 1 9!?b an earlier 19th century porch 
was roofed in tin. Before the turn of the century, the porch roof^sloped 
smoothly down from the roof of the main hotel section in a cat slide 
style. Until the building was remodeled in the early 19bO f s, the porch 
was a double one with Victorian trim.

Both the front and back slopes of the roof contain four dormer 
windows. Those at the rear of the building are-very plain gable dor­ 
mers while those in front are more ornate Federal-style pedimented 
dormers with arched tops with a dentil molding, pilasters, and arched 
two-over-two sash windows. All dormers are frame construction.

The exterior of the building underwent considerable alteration 
in 19b5 when it was converted from a hotel to a bank building. At 
that time the original double porches were removed from the £ront 
of the building. Two first-floor doorways with original arched ian- 
lights were removed at that time, as were two similar aoorways 
exiting onto West Market Street at the side.of the building. A three- 
window one-story bay at the center of the first-floor porch was also 
removed, as werl two doorways opening onto the second floor porch- 
The first-floor main door was moved to the center of the porch. It 
is a reproduction Greek Kevival door with bullseye mouldings.

The interior of the structure has undergone considerable altera­ 
tion on the first floor but the second floor and the finished attic 
are still relativley unchanged. The building originally contained 
1? fireplaces eight on the second floor and nine on the first lloor. 
All eight second floor fireplaces remain with original Greek Hevival- 
ttyle Mantelpieces and decoration. Two fireplaces on the West Market
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Joshua S, Layton and Caleb B. Sipple

The Brick Hotel is significant as one of the few early brick 
public buildings ever constructed in Sussex Bounty as well as for 
the substantial role it played in the legal end social history of 
the county seat of Georgetown. It also serves as one or tne primary 
components in the streetscape or Georgetown 1 s public square and 
circle.

brick structures of any type were a relative rarity in southern 
Delaware before tne late 19th century because of a shortage of suit­ 
able ciay deposits in tne area. Out of several hundred 1Btn ana 
early 19th century structures still standing in the county, less tnan 
a dozen are brick. That the old hotel was known throughout its his­ 
tory as "The brick Hotel" except for a Civil war Era designation as 
"The Union Hotel," further attests to its rarity in Sussex.

The county seat of Georgetown was laid out by order of the 
Delaware General Assembly in 1791. The first courthouse theiee was 
a small two-story frame ana shingle building situated on tne Fublic 
Square and circle. A jail was built of brick at the same time, 
doubtless to increase its resistance to fire and attempts of prisoners 
to escape. During tne first three decades of the 1 ytn century, the 
town was served by a frame-and-shingle Inn situated on the square 
directly across from the courthouse, on trie site of the present 
Brick Hotel.

During the l830 f s it became increasingly oovious that both 
courthouse ana Inn were too .small and botn were replaced by bricK: 
structures, a good deposit of suitable clay having been located just 
to the west of Georgetown* In 1636 the BricK Hotel was built by two 
local Duilders, Joshua S. i^ayton and Ualeb B. Sipple. Tne rollowing 
year it was deemed necessary to replace the existing wooden court-­ 
house with a larger brick structure. The old courthouse was sold 
and moved from Its location on une Circle to make room lor the 
new building.

From 183? until the completion of the new structure in 1839, 
sessions or the various Sussex County Courts were held at tne Brick 
Hotel. The structure also served as lodging and inlormal club ror 
the Delaware Bar as the courts moved from county to county and at
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Descriptions 7 1 
(Continued)

Street end of the first floor remain as does a large kitchen fireplace 
with a massive oak beam mantel. Several interior walls have been 
removed from the first floor. The second floor rooms are original 
as are those on the third floor. The very wide rough plank flooring 
on the third floor appears to be original to the building. Much ori­ 
ginal bullseye moulding remains.

The ground floor windows originally had stone (or wooden simula­ 
ted stone) lintels. These have been replaced with brick. All win­ 
dows had .shutters^during the 19th century, panelled on the first floor 
and louvered on the second floor. These have also been removed.

The many stable and outbuilding structures located at the rear 
of the hotel during the 19th century have been demolished. jyiost dis- - 
appeared during the early 1900*s.
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(Continued)

intervals came to Georgetown during the 19th and early ^Otn. centuries.

One local folk tale concerning the hotel centers on its reputation 
as a favorite lounging spot for staunch supporters of the Union cause 
at a time when the county was leaning toward the Confederate cause 
in public opinion. The southern sympathizers in the area were in the 
habit of spending their evenings in the barroom of the Eagle Hotel 
elsewhere on the Public Square and Circle. Late in the evening when 
both sides had had their fill, tradition says that they piled out of 
their respective refuges and fought out their differences in the 
middle of the Circle. In view of the political climate in Sussex 
County during the Civil War the story is quite possibly true.

The Brick Hotel continued in service as a hotel until the early 
195°' s when the building was remodelled, and converted to use as a 
bank. Most of the changes to the building took place on the first 
of its three floors and its overall appearance is still quite similar 
to its 19th century appearance.

The structure itself is a transition between late Federal and 
(ireek Kevival architecture of a type found in several of the old inns 
of the Delmarva Peninsula with its broad verandah, although in size 
and style it was more imposing than most. The hotel is very similar 
in design to an earlier (162?) brick hotel in Odessa, Del. Originally, 
its most imposing features were its first and second floor porches 
and three large double chimneys, each joined by curtain walls between 
they chimneys. The central pair of chimneys was removed during the 
early 1920 ! s. Although the verandah remains] the second-story porch 
was removed in 1952 as were arched doorways and a central one-bay 
window on the first floor.

Considering the fact that the structure was in constant use as 
a hotel for 110 years and was later converted to offices, a surprising 
amount of its original architectural detail remains. Today it and 
the brick Sussex County Courthouse, itself on the National Register, 
are the only remaining early 19th century structures on the Public 
Square and Circle, with the exception of the Kichards Mansion, a 
private house.
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Statement of Significance: 
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2

While the integrity of the structure has been compromised by 
the interior and exterior alterations, in its overall impact as a 
major public building on the Circle, the building continues to po 
sess much of its original importance,
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Geographical Data: 
^Continued)

10

There are no UTM Grid Marks on the GKOKGKTOWN U.S.G.S. Map. 
The Geographic Coordinates ore as follows:

7h> degrees 23 minutes 13 seconds longitude 

36 degrees i|.1 minutes 23 seconds latitude

Verbal Boundary Description: 
(Continued)

10 1

hotel's rear wing on the west side. The total area nominated is 
half acre.
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